
AGENDA
MEETING VENUE:

Council Chamber Council Offices,
Priory Road, Spalding

Contact: Gregory Watkinson
Direct Dial: 01775 764599
e-mail: GWatkinson@Sholland.gov.uk

Date: 3 April 2018

Dear Councillor,

A meeting of the DISTRICT COUNCIL will be held in the Council Chamber, Council 
Offices, Priory Road, Spalding on Wednesday, 11 April 2018, commencing at 6.30 pm 
at which your attendance is requested. 

Yours faithfully,

Anna Graves
Chief Executive

A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence. 

2. Minutes 
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 8 March 
2018  (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
3 - 14)

3. Declaration of Interests. 
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation.)

4. Chairman's Announcements. 

5. Announcements by Leader and Members of the Cabinet. 

6. Questions asked on notice under Standing Order 6 

7. Questions asked without notice under Standing Order 7 



8. Committee Minutes 
To receive the minutes of the following Committees and Panels:-

a)  Policy Development Panel - 20 February 2018  (Pages 
15 - 24)

b)  Planning Committee - 7 March 2018  (Pages 
25 - 30)

9. Report from Cabinet meeting held on 27 March 2018 
To consider any recommendations of the Cabinet affecting the budget 
and policy framework (Report of the Cabinet enclosed).

(Pages 
31 - 36)

10. Key Decision Plan 
To receive the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
37 - 42)

11. HR Policy Handbook Additions 
To present new policies to the HR Policy Handbook (Report of the 
Executive Manager – People and Public Protection and the Portfolio 
Holder – Governance and Customer enclosed).

(Pages 
43 - 52)

12. Nominations for Committees and other Seats and Proposed Changes to 
the Constitution. 
To receive, from political groups, nominations for any changes to 
Committees and other seats and to consider any proposed changes to 
the Constitution.

13. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the items(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL held in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 8 March 
2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

R Grocock (Chairman)
H Drury (Vice-Chairman)

B Alcock
G R Aley
D Ashby
J R Astill
J Avery
F Biggadike
C J T H Brewis
P E Coupland
T A Carter

A Casson
G K Dark
L J Eldridge
P C Foyster
A Harrison
C N Johnson
C J Lawton
G A Porter
J L Reynolds

M D Seymour
E J Sneath
G J Taylor
J Tyrrell
Whitbourn
P A Williams
A R Woolf
C N Worth

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors M D Booth, 
M G Chandler, R Gambba-Jones, J L King, J D McLean, A M Newton, S-A Slade and 
A C Tennant 

In Attendance: Chief Executive, Executive Director Commercialisation, Shared 
Executive Manager Governance, Strategic Housing Manager (Shared), Interim Chief 
Accountant, Shared Executive Manager Public Protection. Democratic Services 
Officer.

90. MINUTE'S SILENCE 

The Chairman announced the sad news that Councillor Robert Clark had passed 
away on 31st January 2018 aged 76. Councillor Clark had served as a Councillor 
since his election in 2007 to the Donnington, Quadring and Gosberton ward. He also 
served as Chairman of the Council between 2013 and 2015. He was a well-loved and 
highly respected member of the Council who served his community with pride. 
 
The Chairman also announced the death of former Councillor Eric Davies who 
passed away on 29th January 2018 aged 84.  Councillor  Davies represented the 
Spalding St Pauls Ward from 1991-1999 and 2003-2007.

Councillors held a minute’s silence in memory of Councillor Robert Clark and Former 
Councillor Eric Davies.

91. MINUTES 

The Council considered the minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2018.

DECISION:

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



- 2 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 8 
March 2018

The minutes were agreed as a correct record

92. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

With regard agenda item 9 ‘Report from the Cabinet meeting held on 13 February 
2018’ Councillors Alcock, Ashby, Booth, Coupland, Drury and Sneath informed the 
Council that they did not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest but in the interests of 
transparency they wished to declare that they were Directors of Welland Homes.

93. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

As a result of the extreme weather in the previous week, the Chairman’s reception 
had been rescheduled to 27th April 2018.

The Chairman paid tribute to the hard work and results achieved by everyone 
involved in the WW2 memorial charity.

The Bakkavor fun days were announced as 14th & 15th July. Members were invited to 
attend.

94. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE CABINET. 

The Leader thanked staff for their hard work during the severe weather conditions in 
the previous week. Staff had worked hard to keep services operating in very difficult 
circumstances.

The Leader reported that the Government had announced the results of the Housing 
Infrastructure bids – South Holland had been successful in securing £12 million. that 
the Leader paid tribute to the hard work of all those involved in the bid.

Councillor Lawton reported that, during the severe weather, the Council had 
implemented its emergency protocols and had assisted four individuals who had 
been sleeping rough.

95. QUESTIONS ASKED ON NOTICE UNDER STANDING ORDER 6 

There were no questions asked under Standing Order 6.

96. QUESTIONS ASKED WITHOUT NOTICE UNDER STANDING ORDER 7 

Question to:                 Councillor Worth
Question from:             Councillor Alcock
Subject:                        Bull and Monkey Pub

Councillor Alcock asked Councillor Worth if he could provide an update on the status 
of the Bull and Monkey former public house.  Councillor Porter responded that, whilst 
the Council would have preferred to force the sale of the site, this had become 

Page 4



- 3 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 8 
March 2018

impossible because the owners had repaid the clean-up debts that the Council had 
secured against the site. However, in agreeing a court order to bring the proceedings 
to an end, the owners had agreed to the Council’s request that the property be 
cleaned up, fenced and secured within three months. 

97. COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Planning Committee

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee 
held on 10 January 2018.

DECISION

Agreed that the minutes be received.

Governance and Audit Committee

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of Governance & Audit 
Committee held on 16 January 2018 

DECISION

Agreed that the minutes be received.

Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Performance 
Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 25 January 2018.

DECISION

Agreed that the minutes be received.

Performance Monitoring Panel

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the Performance Monitoring 
Panel held on 6 February 2018.

DECISION

Agreed that the minutes be received.

Planning Committee

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee 
held on 7 February 2018 were considered.

Page 5



- 4 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 8 
March 2018

DECISION:

Agreed that the minutes be received.

98. REPORT FROM THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 13 FEBRUARY 2018 

The Council considered the report of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 13 February 
2018 which enclosed the following reports:

 Leader and Executive Director – Commercialisation on the Quarter 3 forecast 
of the full year financial position of the Council

 Portfolio Holder for Finance and Executive Director Commercialisation on 
updates to the Welland Home Business Plan

The Portfolio Holder – Finance stated that the present position of the authority was 
that the balance was moving in the correct direction and that this was in accordance 
with previous forecasts.

It was also noted that the increase in Stamp Duty had caused an increase in revenue 
and that the costs involved with procuring 60 houses were forecasted at £8.7 million.

DECISION  

A) Q3 Finance Report 2017-2018

a) That the use of reserves as set out in Paragraph 2.4.2 of the report to 
Cabinet be approved; and

b) That the necessary revision to the capital programme as part of the 2018-
19 budget report be approved

B) Welland Homes Business Plan Update

c) That the amendment to the Welland Homes Business Plan be approved, 
and that the capital programme, included as Appendix E to the draft 
Budget, Medium Term Plan and Capital Strategy Report to Council on 8 
March 2018, and considered at Item 7 of the Cabinet agenda, be amended 
to reflect the amended programme set out in paragraph 1.18 of the report 
before Cabinet at item 10 of the agenda.

d) That the delegated authority, granted by Council on 25 March 2015, to the 
Executive Director – Commercialisation (the S151 Officer), to approve the 
final mix of use of reserves and borrowing in line with the business plan 
and Council Treasury Management Strategy, be reaffirmed.

99. KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan.

Page 6



- 5 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 8 
March 2018

DECISION:

That the Key Decision Plan be noted

100. BUDGET, MEDIUM TERM PLAN AND CAPITAL STRATEGY 2018-19 

The Council gave consideration to the report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
the Executive Director Commercialisation.

Members were asked to consider an additional appendix to the report (Appendix E) 
which was provided at the meeting.

The Portfolio Holder – Finance introduced the report and stated that the Authority 
was in a strong financial position, therefore, it was noted that no cuts were proposed 
to the budget.

DECISION:

That Council

A. Approves the revenue estimates for the General Fund, Housing Revenue 
Account and Spalding Special Expenses for 2018-19 (as set out in 
Appendices A,B and C) and that the use of reserves set out in Appendix D 
be approved.

B. Approves that Housing Revenue Account weekly dwelling rents reduce by 
1% over the 2017-18 rent with effect from Monday 2nd April 2018. This is in 
line with current government guidelines and legislation.

C. Approves that the fees and charges shown in Appendix H be approved for 
adoption from 1 April 2018

D. Approves that the Council Tax for a Band A property in 2018-19 be set at 
£113.22, a £3.33 per annum increase on 2017-18 levels (band D £169.83, 
a £4.99 per annum increase on 2017-18 levels)

E. Approves that the Spalding special expense for a Band A property be set 
at £15.99, £15.38 in 2017-18 (Band D £23.49, £23.07 in 2017-18).

F. Approves the Medium Term Financial Plan (Appendices A and B)
G. Approves the capital strategy and capital programme (Appendices E and 

F)
H. Approves the Treasury Management Strategy, including the Minimum 

Revenue Provision 
I. policy and annual investment strategy (appendix G)

In accordance with the Local Authorities (Standing Orders)
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 a recorded vote was
taken on the recommendations below (Draft Budget, Medium Term Plan and Capital 
Strategy). The vote was as follows:

Page 7



- 6 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 8 
March 2018

101. COUNCIL TAX 2018/19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance and/or 
Executive Director – Commercialisation to set the amounts of Council Tax applicable 
for 2018-19.

DECISION

1. That Council approves that the charge to be levied on the Council Taxpayers 
of Spalding for services provided in their town (Spalding Special Estimates) 
will be £211,500 for 2018-19. This equates to a Band D equivalent charge of 
£23.49 (£23.07 for 2017-18), a 1.82% increase.

2. That Council approves the formal Council Tax resolutions for 2018-19 as 
follows;

1. It is to be noted that on 13 December 2017 the Council calculated: -

For against abstain Apologies/absent
Alcock
Aley
Ashby
Astill
Avery
Biggadike
Brewis
Carter
Casson
Coupland
Dark
Drury
Eldridge
Foyster
Grocock
Harrison
Johnson
Lawton
Porter
Reynolds
Seymour
Sneath
Taylor
Tyrrell
Whitbourn
Williams
Woolf
Worth

Tennant
McLean
Slade
King
Booth
Newton
Chandler
Gambba-Jones

Page 8



- 7 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 8 
March 2018

(a) the Council Tax Base 2018-19 for the District as 27,302 (item T 
in the formula in section 31B(3) of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, as amended) and;

(b) Dwellings in those parts of the district to which a Parish precept 
relates as shown in Appendix B of the report.

2. Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own 
purposes for 2018-19 (excluding Parish precepts and Spalding Special 
Expenses) is £4,636,700

3 That the following amounts be calculated by the Council for the year 
2018-19 in accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 as amended (the Act): -

(a) £40,716,549 being the aggregate of the amounts 
which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in 
Section 31A(2) of the Act;

          (b) £35,285,800 being the aggregate of the amounts 
which the Council estimates for the 
items set out in Section 31A(3) of the 
Act;

           (c) £5,430,749 being the amount by which the 
aggregate at 3(a) above exceeds the 
aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by 
the Council, in accordance with Section 
31A(4) of the Act, as its Council Tax 
requirement for the year (item R in the 
formula in Section 31a (4) of the Act);

          (d) £198.91 being the amount at 3(c) divided by the 
amount at 1(a) (item T), calculated by 
the Council, in accordance with Section 
31B(1) of the Act, as the basic amount 
of Council Tax for the year (including 
Parish precepts);

          (e) £794,049 being the aggregate amount of all 
special items (Parish precepts- 
excluding Spalding Special Expenses) 

Page 9



- 8 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 8 
March 2018

referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act 
(see Appendix B of the report);

          (f) £169.83 being the amount at 3(d) less the result 
given by dividing the amount at (e) by 
the amount at 1(a) calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 
34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of 
council tax for the year for dwellings in 
those parts of its areas to which no 
special item relates;

    (g) The figures shown in Appendix C of the 
report, being the amounts given by adding 
to the amount at 3(f) the amounts of the 
special item or items relating to dwellings in 
those parts of the district divided in each 
case by the amount at 1(b), calculated by 
the Council, in accordance with Section 
34(3) of the Act, as the basic amounts of its 
Council Tax for the year for dwellings in 
those parts of its area to which one or more 
special items relate;

 (h) The figures shown in Appendix D of 
the report, being the amounts given by 
multiplying the amounts at 3(f) and 
3(g) by the number which, in the 
proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the 
Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in 
a particular valuation band divided by 
the number which in that proportion is 
applicable to dwellings listed in 
valuation band D, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 
36(1) of the Act as the amounts to be 
taken into account for the year in 
respect of categories of dwellings 
listed in different valuation bands.

4. That it be noted that for the year 2017-18 the Lincolnshire County Council 
(LCC) and the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) for Lincolnshire have 

Page 10



- 9 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 8 
March 2018

stated the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance 
with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the 
categories of dwellings shown below:-

A   B    C    D    E    F    G    H    Council 
Tax
 £    £    £    £    £    £    £    £    
LCC 820.98 957.81 1,094.64 1,231.47 1,505.13 1,778.79 2,052.45 2,462.94
PCC 144.96 169.12 193.28 217.44 265.76 314.08 362.40 434.88

5. That having calculated the aggregate in each case the amounts at 3(h) and 4 
above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the amounts shown in Appendix E of the 
report as the amount of Council Tax for 2017-18 of the categories of dwellings 
shown.

6. Appendix F of the report provides definitions for the formal Council Tax 
resolution.

In accordance with the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2014 a recorded vote was taken on the recommendations below (Draft 
Budget, Medium Term Plan and Capital Strategy). The vote was as follows

For Against Abstain Apologies/absent
Alcock
Aley
Ashby
Astill
Avery
Biggadike
Brewis
Carter
Casson
Coupland
Dark
Drury
Eldridge
Foyster
Grocock
Harrison
Johnson
Lawton
Porter
Reynolds
Seymour
Sneath
Taylor
Tyrrell
Whitbourn
Williams
Woolf
Worth

Tennant
McLean
Slade
King
Booth
Newton
Chandler
Gambba-Jones

Page 11



- 10 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 8 
March 2018

102. ANNUAL REFRESH OF THE CORPORATE PLAN 2018/19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director of Strategy and 
Governance.

DECISION 

1. That the contents of the report be noted and that the Annual Corporate Plan 
Refresh 2018-19 is adopted by the Council.

103. GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – People and Public 
Protection and Portfolio Holder for Governance and Customer.

DECISION:

1. That the Gender Pay Gap Statement be approved.

104. PAY POLICY STATEMENT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – People and Public 
Protection.

DECISION

1. That the Pay Policy Statement be approved

105. HOUSING DEVELOPMENT STAFFING RESOURCES 

Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder for Housing and the 
Executive Director – Commercialisation (S151)

DECISION

1. That the posts of Housing Development Project Manager and Housing 
Development Technical Assistant be added to the Council’s staffing 
establishment.

2. That the proposed resourcing proposal and funding arrangement in relation to 
housing development set out in Paragraph 1.5 of this report is approved.

106. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017 

Councillor Aley thanked all those involved in producing such a high quality document 
and one that was now being used by auditors as an example of best practice.

Page 12



- 11 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 8 
March 2018

DECISION:

That the report be received.

107. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017 

Councillor Alcock thanked all those involved and felt that the work would be of value 
to the authority. 

Councillor Woolf echoed Councillor Alcock’s sentiments and paid tribute to the work 
of the Panel, which he was honoured to chair.

DECISION:

That the report be received.

108. REPORTS FROM COUNCILLORS ON OUTSIDE BODIES 

North Level District Internal Drainage Board

Consideration was given to the report of Councillor Brewis.

DECISION

1. That the report be noted

Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire

Consideration was given to the report of Councillor Brewis.

DECISION

1. That the report be noted

109. NOMINATIONS FOR COMMITTEES AND OTHER SEATS AND PROPOSED 
CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION. 

Councillor Worth reminded Council that changes had been made to the terms of 
reference of the Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Panel, and recommended that 
relevant Group Leaders be authorised to notify the Democratic Services team of their 
changes to the membership in accordance with political balance rules.

Councillor Whitbourn was appointed to the vacant seat on the Licensing  Committee.

110. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT 

None

Page 13



- 12 -

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL - 8 
March 2018

(The meeting ended at 7.30 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 14



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Meeting 
Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 20 February 2018 at 
6.30 pm.

PRESENT

A R Woolf (Chairman)
J D McLean (Vice-Chairman)

D Ashby
J R Astill
F Biggadike
M D Booth

H Drury
A Harrison
J L King
A M Newton

J L Reynolds
E J Sneath
J Tyrrell

In Attendance:  HR Manager, Shared Strategic Housing Manager, Democratic 
Services Officer and Housing Options Manager

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors L J Eldridge 

Action By
36. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting of the Policy Development Panel held 
on 5 December 2017 were agreed as a correct record. 

37. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were no declarations of interest. 

38. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6 

There were none. 

39. ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL 

There were none. 

40. KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan published on 2 
February 2018.

DECISION:

That the Key Decision Plan be noted.
 

41. POLICY REGISTER 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8.a)



- 2 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 20 
February 2018

The Panel gave consideration to the Policy Register that was 
dated 8 February 2018.

Councillors mentioned that some items had no dates assigned 
and some had deadlines that were long overdue (2015 deadline)

Officers provided the Panel with a verbal update on the Housing 
Allocations Policy and the Strategic Tenancy Policy, and the 
following points were raised: 

House Allocations Policy

 Officers stated that this Policy set out who was eligible for 
housing, this was a statutory policy and it was enacted in 
2013.

 It was noted that 350 households were on the register, which 
was a relatively low amount compared to other Lincolnshire 
authorities.

 A review of the Policy was to be concluded in April 2019. This 
timescale was set to allow the procurement of the correct IT 
equipment needed to set up the Policy.

 Councillors mentioned that the summary was quite broad for 
providing a reason for the delay in delivery. Officers 
responded that joining the housing register was paper based 
and lengthy. Better IT was the preferred solution rather than 
employing new staff. Members were not satisfied and 
requested more technical details. Officers stated that the IT 
implementation was a bigger piece of work than just allocation, 
and that a bespoke solution could be achieved perhaps 
slightly quicker.

 Councillors questioned why the Policy review had not taken 
place sooner, so that the Authority would be at least part way 
through the improvements at the point of the meeting. Others 
agreed and mentioned that the possibility of being 6 years out 
of date was unacceptable.

 Councillors mentioned that the review was too late in starting 
and that the timescale seemed far too long. It was suggested 
that a task group could be set up to look at this matter. 
However, it was agreed that this was not required. Instead, a 
written report providing an update would be provided to the 
next Panel meeting and that the relevant officer would be 
required to attend.

Page 16



- 3 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 20 
February 2018

Strategic Tenancy Policy

 Officers provided the background to this Policy.

 It was stated that there was no business need to review the 
Policy at the moment. This had been agreed by the relevant 
Portfolio Holder, and officers felt that it was better to review in 
a few years time.

 Councillors stated that the Policy was simply complying with 
statutory policy but that there was no particular activity. 
Officers responded that this was true that the Policy was 
compliant. Councillors added that it should be noted to review 
the Policy in 2 years time.

 Members questioned if there was currently no Business case 
to offer fixed term tenancies and whether the financial effects 
of fixed term against lifetime tenancies had been considered? 
Officers responded that the prevailing legal view at the time 
was that the fixed term element of tenancies could not be used 
if there had been a breach of tenancy. They added that there 
was already a way in place to pursue this and this would be 
monitored.

 Officers also advised that there was a system of  introductory 
tenancies for new tenants prior to them potentially being 
offered full tenancies..

 Members asked if a mix of both life-long and fixed term 
tenancies could be used. Officers stated that they could.

 Members suggested that the difference between fixed term 
and lifelong tenancies could affect the people with the 
properties, as within a fixed-term tenancy, not all people in the 
property were entitled to stay i.e if the original tenant were to 
pass away. Members also asked if this would affect Right to 
Buy. Officers  responded that it was a legal grey area, and 
they were waiting to see how this worked.

 Members requested that the Policy be considered by the 
Panel in 12 months time.

Members wanted to be advised when the Safeguarding Policy 
could be expected to be approved as this was a vital policy for the 
Authority to have in place. Members would be advised of its 
progress.

Page 17



- 4 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 20 
February 2018

AGREED:

A) That the Policy Register be noted;

B) That a full update report on the Housing Allocation Policy be 
provided to the next Panel meeting with attendance by the 
relevant officer.

C) That the Panel consider the Strategic Tenancy Policy in 12 
months time; and

D) That the Panel be advised when the Safeguarding Policy 
would be approved. 

MC 

MH, DS, 
GW 

DH 

42. TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

There were no tracking of recommendations to consider 

43. REDUCTION IN PRINTING AND POSTAGE TASK GROUP 

Councillor Astill provided a verbal update on progress of the Task 
Group’s recommendations:

 It was mentioned that the amount of members using paper 
copies of agendas for the Planning Committee was 
disappointing. 

 At the time of the meeting, 11 councillors were fully paperless.

 The full effects could not yet be measured but it was 
mentioned that there had been significant savings in both 
money and officer time as a result of the changes made 
already.

 There was a need to look at training issues to encourage 
members to adopt electronic copies.

 Members should advise Democratic Services if they could not 
access the correct Mod.Gov pages in the ‘Private’ section.

The following issues were raised:

 Councillors wanted to know the cost of the iPads versus paper 
copies.

 Some members encountered issues with their iPads because 
of a lack of internet connectivity at their homes. It was 

Page 18



- 5 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 20 
February 2018

requested that IT follow up on this.

 Councillors requested a further update on this report at the 
meeting on the 19 September 2018, once there had been a 
years worth of agendas.

AGREED:

a) That the cost of iPads versus paper copies be sought;

b) That iPad issues due to internet connectivity at members’ 
homes be considered.

c) That a further update on the Task Group’s recommendations 
be provided on 19 September 2018

AP, DS 

JW 

GW 

44. ADDITIONS TO THE HR POLICY HANDBOOK: CAREER 
BREAK POLICY; STUCK NOT SICK POLICY; DRUGS AND 
ALCOHOL POLICY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager, 
People and Public Protection, which presented information on a 
number of new policies to the HR Policy Handbook.

Career Break Policy

Members were advised that the Policy had arisen due to a 
request from a staff member for a career break. It was noted that 
many other employers (including some  local authorities) had a 
Career Break Policy in place. It was stated that it had a benefit in 
terms of recruitment and staff retention.

Members considered the information and the following issues 
were raised:

 Councillors mentioned that the 26 week continuous service 
threshold needed for a career break seemed short. Officers 
responded that this was only a request system, and that 
the request would not necessarily be approved by 
managers if they felt the requester could not take the 
break. It was mentioned that the decisions would be made 
on a case-by-case basis.

 Councillors responded that they felt the 26 week threshold 
should be moved to a year. All Councillors agreed that a 
years’ service as a threshold to request a career break, 
rather than 26 weeks, was preferable.

Page 19



- 6 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 20 
February 2018

 Members stated that they felt the Authority needed the 
policy in order to deal with these requests. Additionally, 
they questioned if requesters could gain employment 
during these breaks. Officers answered that the break was 
unpaid and the break would not cover any paid work. 
Councillors questioned how the Authority would police 
those who take employment during the break –especially if 
they went abroad.

 Councillors questioned what level of control members 
would have over this policy. Officers responded that 
changes to the policy would need final approval from Full 
Council.

 Members  asked if a person could request this break more 
than once. Officers responded that an individual could 
make additional requests. However, the approval of such 
requests would be at the managers’ discretion.

 Councillors wanted to know if a Manager’s denial of 
approval would be recorded so that if there was a change 
in management, a record of previous requests was 
available. Officers answered that requests would be kept 
on personal HR files.

 Councillors asked what the request notice was. Officers 
answered that there was no number agreed at the time of 
the meeting, but that it could work like current annual leave 
policy, i.e. an amount of time equal to the request must be 
given as notice.

Stuck Not Sick Policy

Officers provided an overview of this Policy, and Members stated 
that they were happy with the Policy as it stood.

Alcohol, Drugs and Substance Misuse Policy.

Officers gave an overview of the Policy. The Panel considered the 
information and the following issues were raised:

 It was stated that testing would be carried out on a ‘just 
cause’ basis rather than on a random basis. Councillors 
questioned whether  ‘just cause’ was sufficient to cover all 
relevant employees. It was stated that some  supported the 
‘just cause’ policy, and the need for confidentiality. 
Members also asked who would be responsible for 
deciding if ‘just cause’ applied and reporting. Officers 

Page 20



- 7 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 20 
February 2018

answered that both of these responsibilities laid with 
managers.

 Councillors also mentioned that they felt that employees 
would be more cautious if they felt there were random 
checks, as a test could occur at any point. They also asked 
if the Policy could include both ‘just cause’ and random 
tests. Officers responded in the positive. Councillors 
agreed that this was optimal.

 Some members asked that others consider the financial 
implications of random testing. Members wondered if the 
Council could have its own testing kit, rather than having to 
rely on a costly third-party.

 The Panel favoured random checks, with ‘just cause’. It 
also asked, that the Authority should purchase an in-house 
testing kit.

DECISION:

A) That the report be noted.
B) That the threshold for requesting a career break be set at 1 

years worth of continuous service, rather than 26 weeks.
C) That a request notice be added into the Career Break Policy
D) That the Stuck Not Sick Policy be agreed; and
E) That the drugs testing protocol, set out in the Drugs, Alcohol 

and Substance Misuse Policy be based upon both ‘Just 
Cause’ and random checks, and that the Authority investigate 
procuring its own in-house drugs testing kit. 

CB 

CB 

CB 

45. ADDRESSING LONG TERM EMPTY HOMES 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place. Officers provided an update on the current situation with 
regard to progress made on addressing long term empty homes . 
The following issues were raised: 

 Not as many long term empty homes had been brought 
back into use recently compared with previous years. It 
was stated that this was a national trend. Officers 
mentioned that they were looking to review the policy.

 Councillors asked if a list of empty homes in specific wards 
could be produced. Officers answered that this list was 
already underway and near completion. They mentioned 
that this would be ready within a few weeks. Members 
requested that this information be circulated when it 

Page 21



- 8 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 20 
February 2018

became available.

 Members asked how many of the increased amount of 
empty homes were related to this policy. They also asked if 
the figures could be reviewed regularly and reported on a 
monthly basis. Officers stated that the figures were a 
constantly changing picture but that officers would be 
aiming to do this in the future. 

 Members asked when the premium could be increased as 
it was still capped at 125%. Officers responded that the 
Council Tax rates had been set for 18/19 but could be 
reviewed for 19/20

 Councillors asked if wider housing functions could be built 
into the new IT systems. Officers responded in the positive.

 Councillors complimented the Housing Team in their efforts 
to reduce long term empty homes.

 Councillors asked who was making sure that the Housing 
Team’s requirements were being met. Officers advised that 
the Housing Team had been considerably affected by the 
Transformation and digital agendas, however, 
infrastructure would be considered and the Team’s views 
listened to.

 The Panel wished to continue to receive updates every 6 
months.

AGREED:

A) That the update report be noted;
B) That a list of empty homes be circulated when it became 

available. 
C) That the Panel’s compliments to the Housing Team in respect 

of their work reducing long-term empty homes be passed on.
D) That a further update be provided in 6 months time.
 

PS 

PS 

DS, PS 

46. POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – 
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the Policy 
Development Panel.  The Work Programme consisted of two 
separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the future 
Panel meetings along with proposed items for consideration, and 
the second setting out the Task Groups that had been identified 

Page 22



- 9 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 20 
February 2018

by the Panel.

Public Open Spaces Task Group

 The Task Group’s Chairman reported that the Task Group 
was going well, but that S106 agreements needed 
consideration with relevant staff. It was likely that  2/3 more 
meetings would be required.

Data Protection and Retention Task Group.

 The Chairman of the Task Group advised that it would be 
ready to report by April 2018.

Members requested that the Equalities Policy be presented in 
draft form at the meeting in April. 

AGREED:

A) That both sections of the Panel’s Work Programme, as set out 
in the report of the Executive Manager – Governance, be 
noted.

B) That the Equality Policy, in its draft form, be considered at the 
next Panel meeting. 

GW 

CB, CP, 
GW 

47. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

There were no urgent items. 

 

(The meeting ended at 8.43 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 7 March 2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

R Gambba-Jones (Chairman)
J Avery (Vice-Chairman)

B Alcock
D Ashby
C J T H Brewis
P E Coupland
H Drury

L J Eldridge
R Grocock
C J Lawton
J L Reynolds
M D Seymour

A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
P A Williams

In Attendance: Principal Planning Officer, Senior Planning Lawyer, Senior Planning 
Officer and Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors   

96. MINUTES 

The Committee considered the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 7 
February 2018.

DECISION:

That the minutes of the meeting be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

97. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

Item 10 – H11-0003-18

Councillor Eldridge stated that her mother was the applicant and that she would leave 
the room for the duration of the item.

98. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION (STANDING 
ORDERS). 

There were no questions asked under the Council’s Constitution (Standing Orders).

99. H09-0863-17 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H09-0863-17 Mr & Mrs Swepstone Outline planning application for a residential 

development of 7 dwellings, including for the 
demolition of existing site buildings at Swepstones 
Ltd, 115-119 Battlefields Lane North, Holbeach.

Page 25

Agenda Item 8.b)



- 2 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 March 2018

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That Planning permission be refused as the site was considered to be an 
unsustainable form of development, due to its location on the wrong side of the A17. 
It would also result in the loss of an employment site, plus there are other sites within 
the area that are appropriate for the development and which are sequentially 
preferable on flood risk grounds.

(Moved by Councillor Gambba-Jones, Seconded by Councillor Tennant)

100. H16-1053-17 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H16-1053-17 S Dungarwalla Full planning application to the erection of a pair of 

semi-detached dwellings at the land adjacent to 37 
St Pauls Road, Spalding. 

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That Planning permission be granted subject to those conditions listed in Section 9.0 
of the report.

(Moved by Councillor Gambba-Jones, Seconded by Councillor Drury)

Page 26

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 3 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 March 2018

Oral representation were received in respect of the above application with the 
council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee meetings:

 Alan Finch – Agent (Support)

101. H02-1192-17 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H02-1192-17 Amelio Homes Ltd Outline planning application, with all matters 

reserved, for the erection of two detached houses to 
the rear of number 10 Peterborough Road, 
Crowland. 

The Chairman reported that this item had been withdrawn from the agenda.

102. H01-1017-17 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H01-1017-17 Mr & Mrs Carrick Full application for the erection of a self-contained 

building to be used as an annexe at 24 Clarkson 
Avenue, Cowbit, Spalding

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That Planning permission be refused on the grounds that the proposed structure was 
tantamount to a new dwelling by virtue of its size, given that annexes are usually 
expected to be subservient to the host dwelling. Due to the size of the proposal and 
its location there was considered to be an unacceptable impact upon the character of 
the surrounding area and neighbouring residential amenity. Also the Environment 
Agency objection in relation to the proposed mitigation measures was considered to 
be valid and should be upheld.

(Moved by Councillor Brewis, Seconded by Councillor Grocock)

103. H09-0023-18 

Page 27

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 4 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 March 2018

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H09-0023-18 R Kett & N Sutton Full planning application for Extension and 

alterations to the property at 12 Fakenham Chase, 
Holbeach, Spalding

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That Planning permission be granted subject to those conditions listed in Section 9.0 
of the report.

(Moved by Councillor Drury, Seconded by Councillor Eldridge)

Councillor Eldridge left the room at 19:27

104. H11-0003-18 

Planning No. and Applicant Proposal
H11-0003-18 Mr & Mrs D Shortland Full application for an extension and alterations 

including single garage at 65 Little London, Long 
Sutton.

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the 
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of 
which had previously been circulated to all members.

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light 
of prevailing policies and guidance. The debate was not repeated here as Planning 
Committee meetings were webcast and could be viewed in full at 
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could 
be made available by request.

DECISION:

That Planning permission be granted subject to those conditions listed in Section 9.0 
of the report.

Page 28

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


- 5 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 7 March 2018

(Moved by Councillor Tyrrell , Seconded by Councillor Avery)

Councillor Eldridge entered the room at 19:29

105. APPEALS 

Councillors considered the report of the Development Manager which provided an 
update on recent appeal decisions.

DECISION:

That the report be noted.

106. PLANNING UPDATES. 

There were no updates.

107. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT. 

There were no urgent items.

(The meeting ended at 7.29 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Portfolio Holder for Place

To: South Holland District Council - Wednesday, 11 April 2018 

(Author: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject Report from Cabinet meeting held on 27 March 2018

Purpose: To consider recommendations of the Cabinet in respect of:

a) Replacement of Grounds Maintenance Equipment (Cabinet minute 58/17) 
(Cabinet Agenda Item 7)

Recommendations to Council: 

a) Replacement of Grounds Maintenance Equipment

a) That capital expenditure of up to £50,000 be approved for the purchase of replacement 
equipment for the delivery of the grounds maintenance service in 2018/19, the proposed 
funding to come from appropriate reserves; and

b) That the capital equipment replacement programme for grounds maintenance, for annual 
capital expenditure of up to £50,000 until 2022/23 be approved.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution provides that only the full Council may exercise the 
functions of approving, adopting or amending the policy framework and budget, and 
adopting or changing the Constitution.  Staffing matters are also a Council function.  The 
Cabinet however has a responsibility for advising the Council on such matters.  At its 
meeting on 27 March 2018, the Cabinet made recommendations to Council in respect of 
the above item which may affect the budget and policy framework, Constitution or comprise 
staffing issues.

1.2 The remainder of this report details the recommendations of the Cabinet which must be 
read in conjunction with the individual reports to Cabinet, copies of which are attached as 
appendices.  

2.0 REPLACEMENT OF GROUNDS MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT
(Report submitted to Cabinet – Item 7 attached)

Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder Place and the Executive 
Director Place, which sought annual capital expenditure of up to £50,000 until 2022/23 (5 
years) to replace grounds maintenance equipment which had reached the end of its useful 
life.

Page 31

Agenda Item 9.



DECISION:

That the report be noted;

(Other options considered:
 To lease or hire equipment; or
 To do nothing.

Reasons for decision:
 Replacement will result in increased effectiveness, efficiency and quality, and will 

deliver value for money.  It would also create flexibility to purchase the most 
appropriate mowers for the work in hand;

 With the increased flexibility that the purchase of equipment would give, officers 
could investigate, with a view to offer, a commercial ground maintenance service, 
where any new opportunities might arise within the district).

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Cabinet Agenda Item 7

Page 32



APPENDIX A

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Portfolio Holder for Place and/or Executive Director - Place

To:  Cabinet, 27th March 2018
                        South Holland District Council, 11th April 2018

(Author: Christine Morgan, Democratic Services Officer)

Subject Replacement of Grounds Maintenance Equipment

Purpose: To request annual capital expenditure of up to £50,000 until 2022/23 (5 years) 
to replace grounds maintenance equipment which has reached the end of its 
useful life. 

Recommendation(s): 

That it be RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL:

1) To approve capital expenditure of up to £50,000 to purchase replacement equipment for the 
delivery of the grounds maintenance service in 2018/19 and the proposed funding from 
appropriate reserves.

2) To approve the capital equipment replacement programme for grounds maintenance of 
annual capital expenditure of up to £50,000 until 2022/23.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The grounds maintenance function currently uses 4 cylinder mowers to maintain areas of 
public open space and playing pitches across the District. All equipment is regularly 
maintained and serviced in accordance with the manufacturers’ instructions but, given the 
age (8 years old) and heavy usage (at least 8 months of the year), much of the equipment 
is now close to or beyond economic repair. 

1.2 Public open spaces are a vital part of the South Holland district. They are used by many 
thousands of people, including local residents and visitors to South Holland. It is recognised 
that the quality of the street scene affects people’s decisions about visiting the district and 
whether to invest in the local economy. It is therefore vital that fully working, reliable and 
dependable equipment is available. 

1.3 The expected life span of this mowing equipment in regular use is not usually more than 6 
years. The equipment for replacement will be between 8-13 years old. In addition, the 
number of pieces of equipment in service has not been increased over this period whist an 
additional 10.1 hectares has been adopted. This has caused issues with quality of 
maintenance and increased instances of equipment break downs. This report therefore 
proposes to increase the mower equipment numbers to 5 during this 5 year replacement 
programme (1 mower purchase per year until 2022/23). 

Page 33



1.4 The Council’s Capital Programme, as presented in the budget report to Council, contains 
an estimated £50,000 in 2018/19 for the replacement of essential grounds maintenance 
equipment. This amount was contained within the provision of schemes still subject to 
approval and are estimated to be funded from appropriate reserves. The Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Strategy identifies that in order to secure future capital investment the 
Council needs to create capacity within its revenue budget to fund capital expenditure by 
making annual contributions to its reserves to replace funds being used. Paragraph 5.7 
outlines the financial implications of this proposal.  

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Recommended: 5 year Capital replacement programme – To release up to £50,000 
from the capital programme each year from 2018/19 to 2022/23 to purchase and replace 
grass cutting equipment. 

2.2 Lease or hire equipment – Investigation into contract hire costs indicated that they would 
not deliver value for money. 

2.3 Do nothing – This option would not provide dependable equipment and would therefore 
decrease the quality of South Holland’s public open spaces. 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 Replacement will result in increased effectiveness, efficiency, quality and deliver value for 
money. It will also create flexibility to purchase the most appropriate mowers for the work in 
hand. For example, longer grass will require rotary mowers whereas cylinder mowers 
support flat amenity areas. 

3.2 With increased flexibility that the purchase of equipment will give, Officers can investigate, 
with a view to offer, a commercial grounds maintenance service, where any new 
opportunities might arise within the district. 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

The following benefits are expected with the approval of a capital replacement programme:

 Value for money
 Increased customer satisfaction.
 Reduced complaints regarding the quality of open spaces.
 Opportunity for income generation.
 Flexibility to purchase the right equipment for the right work.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 Increasing the efficiency of the equipment will decrease carbon footprint and improve the 
impact on the environment. 

Page 34



5.2 Constitutional & Legal

5.3 As the recommended option requires the release of new budget provision, the contents of 
this report will be decided at a meeting of South Holland District Council on 11th April 2018. 
Contracts

5.4 All equipment will be purchased in accordance with the required procurement process. It is 
intended that maintenance will continue with Environmental Services current maintenance 
contractors. 

5.5 Corporate Priorities

5.6 Within South Holland District Council’s Corporate Plan 2015-2019 four key priorities are 
clearly set out. In the context of grounds maintenance, two of the four key priorities are 
extremely pertinent. These are;

To have pride in South Holland by supporting the district and residents to develop 
and thrive; and

To provide the right services, at the right time and in the right way.

5.7 Financial

5.7.1 The following table shows the number of mower equipment to be replaced and estimated 
costs associated with that purchase. However as the purchase will need to follow a 
procurement process it is requested that up to £50,000 is released each year to ensure 
sufficient funding provision. 

Number of mowers 
to be replaced.

Estimated replacement 
purchase cost (£)

2018/19 1 45,000
2019/20 1 46,350
2020/21 1 47,740
2021/22 1 49,172
2022/23 1 50,647

5.7.2 It is proposed that a guaranteed £50,000 be released from the Investment and Growth 
reserve in 2018/19 and 2019/20 for the procurement of 2 of the mowers. It is also proposed 
that work be undertaken with the service to identify capacity within its budget and corporate 
budgets to make an annual contribution to reserves of at least £25,000 in order to provide 
replacement funding for future year purchases. This contribution will be secured from 
efficiency savings or from additional income that may be generated from a potential 
commercial grounds maintenance service.  This is summarised in the following table.

Page 35



 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 TOTAL
Mower cost 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 250,000
   
Use of Reserves 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0 250,000
Revenue 
Contribution to 
reserves -25,000 -25,000 -25,000 -25,000 -25,000 -25,000 -25,000 -175,000
Net use of 
reserves 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 -25,000 -25,000 75,000

On the basis of this proposal the Council will secure a total investment of £250,000 in 
replacement mowers but will only require a net £75,000 contribution from reserves over a 7 
year period. This position will improve if the procurement costs of the vehicles are less than 
the £50,000 provided for. It is also subject to being able to generate capacity in the revenue 
budget to make the £25,000 contribution and work will be undertaken during 2018/19 to 
identify this. 

Reputation

5.7.3 As previously stated, the physical quality of South Holland’s public open spaces is 
important to residents, visitors and businesses. It is therefore critical to keep these areas 
clean and tidy. Providing quality and reliable grounds maintenance equipment will support 
the desired quality of open spaces. 

5.8 Risk Management

5.8.1 Reliability of equipment is essential and any down time for the running repair of old and 
worn machinery affects the efficiency and effectiveness of the service. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All wards and communities are affected.

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: N 
Exempt Decision: N 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Page 36



1

KEY DECISION PLAN Issued – 29 March 2018

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to: 

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.  

Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 10.

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

2

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

Award a contract 
for removal of 
Concrete Finlock 
Gutters and 
replacement to 
216 Council 
owned dwellings

To award a contract. Meetings and discussions. Officer Decision Not before 
5th Mar 2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Public 
Protection

Corporate 
Enforcement 
Policy

To review and update the Corporate 
Enforcement Policy creating one single 
policy for South Holland and Breckland 
Council

Meetings and discussions. Corporate 
Enforcement 
Policy

Cabinet 29 May 2018

P
age 38



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

3

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Finance

Holbeach Food 
Enterprise Zone

To seek approval for the Council to 
invest in the delivery of the Holbeach 
Food Enterprise Zone

Meetings and discussions. Cabinet 29 May 2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Building 
Materials 
Contract

To award a contract. Portfolio Holder for 
Housing. 

Meetings and discussions. 

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Jun 
2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Electrical 
Materials Supply 
Contract (EMSC) 
2017 - 2021

To award the EMSC to the successful 
supplier from the outcome of the 
procurement process

Meetings and discussions Officer Decisions Before 
30 Jun 2018

P
age 39



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

4

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

New sewerage 
maintenance 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new sewerage maintenance 
contract for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Jun 
2018

*Cabinet Membership
The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C Johnson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

P
age 40



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

5

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

P
age 41

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of:        Phil Adams, Executive Manager People and Public Protection
    Portfolio Holder, Councillor Colin Johnson

To: South Holland District Council, 11 April 2018

Author: Claire Burton, HR Manager 

Subject: Additions to the HR Policy Handbook; 
- Stuck Not Sick Policy
- Drugs and Alcohol Policy
- Career Break Policy

Purpose: This report presents new policies to the HR Policy Handbook. 

Recommendation(s):

1) That following consideration by Policy Development Panel, the following policies 
are approved; 

a) Stuck Not Sick Policy
b) Alcohol, Drugs and Substance Misuse Policy 
c) Career Break Policy

1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 In January 2017, Full Council approved the Employee Handbook which 
contains a number of employee policies.  In line with what was agreed at that 
meeting, two additional policies have been developed and this report seeks 
the approval of those additional policies.

1.3 Each policy outlines legal principles only and any specific details will fall within 
procedures. This is to enable longevity of the policies are sustainable for a 
longer period of time, therefore reducing the review periods and mitigate the 
risk of non-compliance. Where changes to legislation or constitution arise, the 
policies will be amended accordingly. 

1.4 As new policies are adopted, all staff will be communicated with to raise 
awareness of its existence.

Page 43

Agenda Item 11.



1.5 The new policies and a key summary of each are below:

Policy Key summary

Stuck Not Sick Policy 
Appendix 1 – Policy 3 - Special Leave, 
page 2

The Stuck Not Sick procedure gives 
employees access to two emergency 
days in the leave year where, with a 
genuine reason, they are able to take a 
leave of absence without prior 
agreement, but with the authorisation of 
their line manager.  This leave of 
absence can be covered by annual 
leave, flexitime, or through leave without 
pay or where in the interest of the 
service by repayment of the time within 
an agreed period. This may cover times 
of emergency such as adverse weather 
conditions making it difficult to travel to 
work, or problems needing an 
employee’s attention with little or no 
notice.  

The policy aims to address situations 
which are not covered by existing 
policies and procedures and where 
currently an employee might be tempted 
to telephone in sick when in fact they 
are not genuinely sick, but they are 
genuinely stuck

Alcohol, Drugs and Substance 
Misuse Policy 
Appendix 2 – Policy 12 Alcohol, Drugs 
and Substance Misuse Policy

The policy addresses the principals by 
which the Council would like employees 
to operate by when addressing alcohol, 
drugs and substances. 

The recommendation is to test for 
Alcohol, Drugs and Substance Misuse 
on a ‘just cause’ basis and also random 
sampling.

The Council seek to take a supportive 
stance where possible, but 
acknowledges this cannot always be the 

Page 44



case when the safety of others is at risk. 
The approach the Council will take in 
the different situations is outlined in the 
procedure and stand by its commitment 
to act on their Duty of Care to all.

Career Break Policy 
Appendix 1 – Policy 3 - Special Leave, 
page 2

The development of a Career Break 
Policy/Procedure has stemmed from a 
request from a long serving staff 
member to take a Career Break.  There 
is no scheme currently available hence 
the preparation of this new policy.

An employee is required to have 52 
weeks’ employment before they may 
request a career break.  Career breaks 
are unpaid and may be requested by 
any employee so long as they meet the 
length of service required.

A benchmarking exercise has been 
carried out with neighbouring 
authorities.  Out of the 6 surveyed, 5 of 
those have had Career break schemes 
in place between 6 and 10 years and on 
average have 2 requests per year.   

It is anticipated that the Career Break 
policy would enhance the benefits for 
current and prospective employees and 
enable an effective retention tool.

2.0 OPTIONS 

2.1 Do Nothing 

2.2 Approve the new policies as part of the HR Policy Handbook for South 
Holland District Council

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

3.1 To mitigate risk and ensure appropriate policies are in place to deal with 
employee related issues in a fair and consistent manner.

Page 45



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

4.1 To mitigate risk in the application of policies. 

4.2 To provide transparent, consistent and fair policies across the Council.

4.3 To actively support culture and change in a positive way 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 Carbon Footprint/Environmental Issues

5.1.1 None

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 Amendments to relevant policies will be made as and where dictated by 
any change to constitutional or legal requirements. 

5.2.3 The Policy Handbook is designed with the intention to reduce the risk of 
litigation against the Council 

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 None

5.4 Corporate Priorities 

5.4.1 The policy proposals are made with the intention of supporting the Councils’ 
corporate priority of providing the right services, at the right time, in the right 
way by ensuring the recruitment of high calibre individuals are in place to 
help deliver the corporate vision. 

5.5 Crime and Disorder

5.5.1 None

5.6 Equality and Diversity/Human Rights

5.6.1 The proposed policies are designed in compliance with Equality and 
Diversity as per the Equality Act 2010.

5.7 Financial

5.7.1.   None

Page 46



5.8 Health and Well-being

5.8.1 None

5.9 Reputation

5.9.1 None 

5.10 Risk Management

5.10.1These proposals are made (in part) with the intention of reducing the risk of 
litigation against the Council. These proposals are made with the intention of 
supporting the Councils strategic position by enabling effective policy 
management appropriately within the bounds of the law.

5.11 Staffing

5.11.1 These proposals are made in order to ensure the best possible infrastructure 
is in place to recruit, select, retain and performance manage employees 
across the Council.

5.11.2 These proposals are made to ensure both staff and management are clear 
on relevant legislation, best practice and risk mitigation.

5.12 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.12.1  Consultation has taken place with unions and they are supportive of the 
policies. 

5.12.2 Performance Development Panel (PDP) have been consulted and their 
recommendations incorporated into this report.

5.13 Transformation Programme 

5.13.1  These proposals are made to support the Councils Transformation  
programme

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no areas within the 
community which will be affected by the recommendation

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None used

Page 47



Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Claire Burton, HR Manager CPBS
Telephone Number: 01775 764458
Email: claire.burton@cpbs.com
Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix 1 Policy 3 - Special Leave

Appendix 2   Policy 12 - Alcohol, Drugs and Substance Misuse 

Page 48



1

Appendix 1
POLICY 3: SPECIAL LEAVE

Additional leave, with or without pay, may be granted in special circumstances, for a limited 
period of time for example bereavement or other compassionate grounds or for jury service. 
Payment for such leave will be made at the discretion of the line manager and in 
consultation with the HR Department. Employees should always let their line manager know 
if they need to take special leave so that each individual situation can be considered fairly 
and consistently.

As a guide the following can apply;
• Death of immediate family member can be up to a maximum of 7 paid days, which 

includes the funeral day. Maximum amounts are normally given to executors of the 
estate to allow them time to organise the funeral and/or estate, additional time may 
be given where appropriate; this must be discussed with the HR Manager.

Immediate family member includes:
Spouse/Partner
Father/Mother including in-laws and step parents 
Brother/Sister/Step Brother/Sister including in-laws 
Son/Daughter/Step Son/Daughter including in-
laws Grandparents or Grandchildren

In exceptional circumstances, other relatives may be considered but this must be discussed 
with the HR Manager.

Other special leave

• Serious domestic instances – one day’s paid leave will be given in such cases e.g. 
house fire, flood or burglary

• Sporting events – up to 5 days’ paid leave may be granted where an employee is 
participating in a national or international event as a representative of their country.
Additional leave may be taken as annual leave or unpaid leave.

• Jury service – paid leave will be granted to an employee called for Jury Service, unless 
exemption is secured. An allowance for loss of earnings is payable by the court which the 
employee must claim. The court will send the employee a loss of earnings certificate and 
this should be provided to HR who will arrange for the amount of the allowance to be 
deducted from their pay.

• Acting as witness -
(a) In the case of an employee attending as a witness on behalf of the Council,

leave with pay will be granted, on the understanding that witness fees received 
(excluding travel and subsistence expenses) are paid to the Council.

(b) In the case of an employee called by the Court as a witness leave with pay will be 
granted provided the employee applies to the court for loss of earnings which
must be paid back to the Council. Employees should inform their managers as 
soon as they are informed that they are required to attend and should provide 
their manager with a copy of the notification.

(c) In all other cases where the employee is called to attend court as a witness, leave 
without pay will be granted. Employees can claim from the person citing

Page 49



2

them, the relevant amount in respect of loss of earnings.
• Reserve Forces – Employees who are a member of the Reserve or Territorial Army 

should advise their line manager at the earliest opportunity. Up to a maximum of 10 days 
paid leave will be granted in any one leave year. As the RA/TA pay for training, the 
Council will make up the difference in any lost pay. Details of training dates should be 
provided to the line manager.

• Religious Holidays – Any leave required for specific religious holidays may be taken 
through the usual annual leave or flexitime request.

• Fertility treatment – Up to 5 days’ unpaid leave will be granted in any one year for an 
employee to undergo fertility treatment.

• Medical appointments – reasonable time off will be granted to attend medical/dental 
appointments. It is expected that employees will arrange their appointments outside of 
working hours, however, if this is impossible, employees should ensure that their 
appointments are at the beginning or end of the day to minimise disruption to their work.
There is no statutory right for employees to be paid for this leave, however payment may 
be made at the discretion of their line manager, who may request evidence of the 
appointment.

• Any other leave – any leave required not specified in this policy must be discussed with 
the line manager and HR team.

 Career Break - Employees must have 52 weeks’ or more continuous service before any 
request for a career break can be made.  A career break may be any period of time 
between three months and one year. A career break must be requested at least 3 months 
before the career break is requested to start.  Very exceptionally, an extension beyond 
the one-year period may be possible by mutual agreement.  The career break scheme 
will be open to all employees with the requisite service, including part-time employees.  
Career Breaks will be unpaid. The granting of a career break and the length of 
the break will be entirely at the organisation's discretion and will depend on the needs of 
the business at the time in question. Employees are not permitted to carry out paid work 
during a career break.

 Stuck not Sick – Employees have access to two emergency days in the leave year where, 
with a genuine reason, they are able to take a leave of absence without prior agreement, 
but with the authorisation of their line manager.  This leave of absence can be covered by 
annual leave, flexitime, through leave without pay or where in the interest of the service 
by repayment of the time within a two month period. This may cover times of emergency 
such as adverse weather conditions making it difficult to travel to work, or problems 
needing an employee’s attention with little or no notice.  

Page 50



APPENDIX 2

1

POLICY 12: ALCOHOL, DRUGS AND SUBSTANCE MISUSE

The Council is committed to the health and well-being of employees and the inappropriate use 
of alcohol or substances can have a negative impact on both. At work, alcohol, drugs or 
substance misuse can result in reduced levels of attendance, impaired work performance and 
increased risks to health and safety. The effects of alcohol, drugs or substances use may also 
be detrimental to the Council’s reputation and image and its ability to deliver high quality 
services.

The main principles of this policy are:

 To maintain a safe, healthy and productive workplace
 The Council does not condone alcohol, drugs or substance abuse
 The Council will offer help and support to any employee with an alcohol, drug or  

substance misuse problem, as far as reasonably practicable
 The Council will not tolerate:

o The misuse of substances, including alcohol or drugs, on Council premises 
o Intoxication at work through the misuse of alcohol, drugs or substances taken 

elsewhere
o Supply, production or storage of illegal drugs on the premises

Substance Testing

Any employee may be required to undergo ‘for cause’ testing where an incident or accident at 
work occurs, or there is evidence of abnormal or unacceptable behaviour, and alcohol, drugs 
or substances are suspected to be involved.

Alcohol self-testing will be made available to certain groups of staff where capability is critical 
to the safety of themselves and others. Anyone who undertakes a self- test that indicates they 
are intoxicated may stand down from their duties without pay. 

Random substance, alcohol and drug testing will be carried out on members of staff who work 
in safety-critical jobs, including those working with machinery, whose job duties involve driving 
or whose job involves responsibility for the care of others.

Testing forms one part of a capability or conduct investigation in line with the disciplinary 
procedure, where on reasonable grounds it may be suspected that substance abuse is 
involved, and confirmation of this is needed to identify the appropriate action. 

Responsibilities

Managers have a responsibility to act promptly where there are reasonable grounds to believe 
that an employee is not complying with the principals of this policy.

Employees have a responsibility to ensure they comply with the principles of this policy. They 
are expected to present a professional, courteous and efficient image to those with whom they 
come into contact at all times. They therefore have a personal responsibility to adopt a 
responsible attitude towards the consumption of alcohol, drugs and other substances to which 
this policy relates.

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	8.a) Policy Development Panel - 20 February 2018
	8.b) Planning Committee - 7 March 2018
	9. Report from Cabinet meeting held on 27 March 2018
	Appendix A - Grounds Maintenance Equipment report

	10. Key Decision Plan
	11. HR Policy Handbook Additions
	Appendix 1 for HR Policy Handbook additions
	Appendix 2 for HR Policy Handbook additions


